

**CANYON FUEL COMPANY, LLC
SKYLINE MINE
C/007/005**

TABLE OF CONTENTS

File in:
 Confidential
 Shelf
 Expandable
Refer to Record No 0006 Date 02222008
In C/007005, 2008, Incoming
For additional information

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

PART 1: LEGAL FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION PAGE

Application for Renewal

110	Minimum Requirements for Legal, Financial, Compliance and Related Information	<u>1-1</u> General Chapter 1
111	Introduction	<u>1-1</u> General Chapter 1
112	Identification of Interests	<u>1-5</u> General Chapter 1
112.100	Business Entity	<u>1-5</u> General Chapter 1
112.200	Applicant and Operator	<u>1-5</u> General Chapter 1
112.300	Control Persons	<u>1-6</u> General Chapter 1
112.400	Coal Mining and Reclamation Operation Permit Applications Previous, Current or Pending	1-14
112.500	Legal or Equitable Owner of the Surface Mineral Properties to be Mined	1-19
112.600	Owners of Record of Property Contiguous to Proposed Permit Area	1-19
112.700	MSHA Numbers	1-21
112.800	Interest in Contiguous Lands	1-24
112.900	Certification of Submitted Information	1-25
113	Violation Information	<u>1-26</u> General Chapter 1
114	Right-of-Entry Information	1-30
115	Status of Unsuitability Claims	1-36
116	Permit Term [unchanged]	1-36
117	Insurance Certificate	<u>1-40</u> General Chapter 1
118	Filing Fee [not applicable]	1-40
120	Permit Application Format and Contents	1-41
130	Reporting and Technical Data	1-41
140	Maps and Plans	1-41
150	Completeness	1-41

Revised: 12-21-07

-1-

File in:

Confidential

Shelf

Expandable

Refer to Record No. 0006 Date 2/22/08

In elect 005, 2008, Wyoming

For additional information

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1-0	Coal Mining and Reclamation Operations	1-17	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
Table 1-1	List of Violations - Soldier Canyon Mine and Banning Load Out, Dugout Canyon Mine - Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining NOV History	1-27	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
Table 1-2	List of Violations - SUFCo Mine - Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining NOV History	1-28	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
Table 1-3	List of Violations - Skyline Mines - Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining NOV History	1-29	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
Table 1-4	Certificate of Violations - Affiliated Companies	1-42	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
Table 1-114	Permit Acreage, Coal and Surface Ownership	1-23	<u>General Chapter 1</u>

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1-1	Corporate Ownership	1-3	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
Figure 1-2	Corporate Organization	1-4	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
Figure 1-1	Ashland Coal Ownership	1-4a	<u>General Chapter 1</u>

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix¹

117-A	Certificate of Liability Insurance	<u>General Chapter 1</u>
118-A	Right-of-Entry	

| Revised: 12-21-07 -2-

¹—~~The Permit Application on file with the Utah Division of Oil Gas and Mining contains various appendices, maps, drawings and other materials previously submitted. These materials are unchanged by this Notice of Change in Ownership and Control Information. The updated certificate of liability insurance referenced in Section 117, however, is attached as Appendix 117 A.~~

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 1: EXHIBITS</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
1.14-1 Announcement	1-31 Appendix 114-A
1.14-2 UP&L Tract Lease Agreement	
1.14-3 BLM Letter to Include Lawrence Reservoir	

<u>PART 1: DRAWINGS SECTION</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Skyline Mines - Ownership	1.6-1
Coal Ownership	1.6-2
Skyline Mines Permit Area	1.6-3
Skyline Buried Pipe and Powerlines	1.6-3A

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.0 Introduction	2-0
2.1 General Environmental Resources Summary	2-1
2.1.1 Description of Cultural, Historical and Archeological Resources	2-3
2.1.2 Threatened and Endangered Species	2-4d
2.2 Geology	2-5
2.2.1 Stratigraphy	2-5
2.2.2 Star Point Sandstone	2-5
2.2.3 Blackhawk Formation	2-8
2.2.4 Intrusive Igneous Rock	2-9

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.2.5 Surficial Deposits	2-9
2.2.6 Structural Geology	2-9
2.2.7 Mineable Coal Deposits	2-11 Confidential File
2.2.8 Other Mineral Deposits	2-16
2.2.9 Waste Rock Disposal Site	2-20
2.2.10 General Geology of the Rock Disposal Site	2-21
2.2.11 Plans for Casing and Sealing Holes	2-21(a)
2.3 Ground Water Hydrology	2-22
2.3.1 Geologic Setting of the Ground Water System	2-23
2.3.2 Characteristics of Seeps and Springs	2-25(a)
2.3.3 Stream Seepage	2-27
2.3.4 Aquifer Characteristics	2-28
2.3.4.1 Waste Rock Disposal Site	2-30
2.3.4.2 Coal Loadout Site	2-30(c)
2.3.4.3 Conveyor Route in Eccles Canyon	2-30(h)
2.3.5 Uses of Water in the Aquifers	2-30(j)
2.3.5.1 Surface Water Rights	2-30(j)
2.3.5.2 Ground Water Rights	2-310(k)
2.3.6 Ground Water Quality	2-31
2.3.7 Ground Water Monitoring Program	2-33

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.4 Surface Water Hydrology	2-40
2.4.1 Drainage Basin Characteristics	2-40
2.4.2 Flow Characteristics	2-41 2-42
2.4.3 Sediment Yield	2-43 (a)
2.4.4 Monitoring Program	2-43 (a) (b)
2.5 Hydrological Impacts of Mining Activities	2-48
2.5.1 Potentially Affected Water Rights	2-48
2.5.2 Mining Impact on Water Quantity	2-49
2.5.3 Alternative Water Supply	2-51 (d) (e)
2.6 Climate	2-52
2.6.1 Climatological and Air Quality Monitoring Program	2-52
2.6.2 Synopsis of Data	2-55
2.7 Vegetation	2-58
2.7.1 General Description	2-58
2.7.2 Community Analysis-Results and Discussions	2-58 (a)
2.7.3 Threatened and Endangered Plant species	2-58 (c)
2.7.4 Potential for Reestablishing Vegetation	2-58 (d)
2.7.5 UP&L Tract	2-59
2.7.6 Vegetation of the North Lease Tract Area	2-61
<u>Attachment 1 Condition and Production of James Canyon Reference Area</u>	

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.8 Aquatic Wildlife Resources	2-65
2.8.1 Aquatic Monitoring Program	2-68 2-70
2.9 Terrestrial Wildlife	2-79
2.9.1 Species Status Lists	2-80
2.9.2 Project Impact Analysis by High-Interest Species	2-87
2.9.2.1 Mammals	2-88
2.9.2.2 Herpetofauna	2-97
2.9.3 Endangered and Threatened Species	2-99
2.9.4 Impact Analysis and Protection of Wildlife	2-99
2.9.5 Terrestrial Wildlife North Lease Tract Area	2-104
2.10 Raptors	2-107
2.10.1 Conclusion	2-110 2-111
2.10.2 Raptors of the North Lease Tract Area	2-111(a)
2.11 Soils	2-112
2.12 Landuse	2-122
2.12.1 Existing Land Uses	2-122
2.12.2 Capability and Productivity of the Permit Area Affected by Surface Operations and Facilities	2-126
2.13 Community Infrastructure and Socio-Economics	2-135
2.13.1 Service Area	2-136
2.13.2 Growth Capability	2-137

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
2.13.3	Labor Force	2-139
2.13.4	Suggested Action Items	2-153
2.13.5	Comprehensive Study Program	2-158
2.14	Prime Farmland Investigation	2-161

<u>PART 2: MAPS, FIGURES AND PLATES</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
Map	2.2-1 Topographic Map with Surface Geology	2-6
Figure	2.2-A Generalized Columnar Section Eccles Canyon Area	2-7
Figure	2.2.8-1 Gas Well Locations	2-17
Figure	2.3.2-1 Spring Survey - August, 1988 South Fork of Eccles Creek	2-26
Figure	2-30A Cross Section Location Map	2-30D
Figure	2-30B North-South Hydrologic Cross Section A-A ¹ through Coal Loadout Facility Eccles Canyon	2-30E
Figure	2-30C North-South Hydrologic Cross Section B-B ¹ Through Drill Hole TH-5 and Conveyor Route Through Eccles Canyon	2-30F
Figure	2-30D North South Hydrologic Cross Section C-C ¹ Through Well 13-2 and Conveyor Route Eccles Canyon	2-30G

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: MAPS, FIGURES AND PLATES (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
Figure	2.8-A Eccles Creek and Huntington Creek, Carbon and Emery Counties, Utah	2-69
Figure	2.9.1-A Winter Range and Migratory Route of Elk Living in the Environs of the Skyline Lease Area	2-91
Figure	2.9.2-B Winter Range and Migratory Route of Mule Deer Living in the Environs of the Skyline Lease Area	2-94
Revised:	12-21-07 -7-	

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

Figure	2.9.3-A Distribution Map of Endangered Mammalian Species in Utah in Relation to the Skyline Lease Area	2-100
Figure	2.12-A Location of the Skyline Project Area	2-123
<u>PART 2: Exhibits</u>		
Exhibit	2.3-1 Portions of UPDES permit	2-39
Exhibit	"A" Probable Hydrologic Consequences of Mining -	

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: DRAWINGS SECTION</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Surface Geology	2.2.1-1
Lower O'Conner "A" Isopach Map	2.2.7-1
Flat Canyon Isopac Map	2.2.7-1A
Lower O'Conner "A"/Flat Canyon Overburden Map	2.2.7-2
Lower O'Connor "B" Isopach Map	2.2.7-3
Overburden Isopach Map, Lower O'Connor "B" Seam	2.2.7-4
Upper O'Connor Seam Isopach Map	2.2.7-5
Overburden Isopach Map Upper O'Connor Seam	2.2.7-6

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: DRAWINGS SECTION (continued)</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Abandoned Adjacent Working	2.2.7-7
Fence Diagram: Water Monitoring Wells	2.3.4-1
Cross-Section A - A'	2.3.4-1A
Cross-Section B - B'	2.3.4-1B
Cross-Section C - C'	2.3.4-1C
Potentiometric Surface Map	2.3.4-2
Surface Water Rights on and Adjacent to the Skyline Property	2.3.5.1-1
Ground Water Rights on and Adjacent to the Skyline Property	2.3.5.2-1
Location of Hydrologic Monitoring Stations	2.3.6-1

North Lease Subsidence Hydrologic Monitoring Stations	2.3.6-2
Vegetation Map	2.7.1-1
Vegetative Reference Area	2.7.1-2
Soils Type UP&L Tract	2.7.1-1B
Macroinvertebrate Sample Site Location	2.8.1-1
Portal Yard Area Soil Map	2.11-1
Man Made Features and Existing Land-Uses	2.12.1-1

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: TABLES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.2.8-1 Summary of 24 Analyses	2-18
2.2.8-2 Forms of Sulfur Analysis	2-19
2.3.1 <u>Claystone in Drill hole comparison</u>	<u>2-24</u>
2.3.7-1 Comprehensive Water Quality Analytical Schedule	2-36
2.3.7-2 Abbreviated Water Quality Analytical Schedule	2-37
2.3.7-2A North Lease Subsidence Hydrologic Monitoring	2-37(a)
2.3.7-3 Monitoring Station Identification	2-38
2.3.7-4 Summary Information on Groundwater Observation Wells	2-39
2.3.7-5 Comprehensive Water Quality Analytical Schedule Waste Rock Disposal Site - Well Number 92-21-03	2-39aa
2.8-1 Stream Resource Monitoring Schedule for Eccles Creek	2-72
2.8-1a <u>Fish / Macroinvertebrate Monitoring Schedule</u>	<u>2-72a</u>
2.8-2 Descriptors of Benthic Communities at Seven Stations on Eccles Creek and Its Major Tributaries, Carbon County, Utah	2-73
2.8-3 Sediment Composition of Gravel Beds at Four Stations on Eccles Creek as Percent of Total Mean Weight for Sediments Passing Through Six USGS Standard Soil Sieve Sizes	2-77
2.9-1 Species List and Classification of Mammals Whose Published Ranges Overlap the Skyline Coal Mine Site	2-81
2.9-2 Species List and Classification of Amphibians Whose Published Ranges Overlap the Skyline Coal Mine Site	2-85
2.9-3 Species List and Classification of Reptiles Whose Published Ranges Overlap the Skyline	

2.9-4	<u>Count Lists for Carbon and Emery County</u> <u>Federally Listed Threatened(T), Endangered(E)</u> <u>and Candidate Species</u>	2-104a
2.9-5	<u>Federally Listed Sensitive Species List</u>	2-104c
2.9-6	<u>Sensitive Plant, Wildlife and Fish Species</u> <u>Of Manti-La Sal National Forest (12/07)</u>	2-104f

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: TABLES (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>	
2.10-1	Raptor Species Seen and Habitat Suitability in Manti Division, Manti-LaSal National Forest	2-108
2.12.1-1	Sheep Allotments Data for Four Allotments Contained Partially within Coal Lease Area for Proposed Skyline Mine	2-124
2.12.2-1	Grazing Potential for Area to be Affected by Mining Surface Operations and Facilities	2-128
2.12.3	Farm Ownership, Size, and Yield	2-133 (f)
2.12.4	Farm Grazing Usage	2-133 (g)
2.13-1	Growth Capability Summary	2-138
2.13-2	1986 Workforce - Unemployment Status	2-141
2.13-3	Manpower Distribution - 1988	2-142
2.13-4	Manpower Distribution - 1986	2-143
2.13-5	Manpower Distribution - 1985	2-144
2.13-6	Manpower Distribution - 1984	2-145
2.13-7	Manpower Distribution - 1983	2-146
2.13-8	Manpower Distribution - 1982	2-147
2.13-9	Projected Manpower Levels - 1989 through 1991	2-148
2.13-10	Manning Table for Pleasant Valley Mines	2-150

2.13-11	Comparison of Projected Mines to Open on Federal Land Prior to 1985 and Current Status	2-151
2.13-12	Mining Company Manpower Needs Comparison - 1981 through 1985	2-152

Table of Contents

← Formatted: Centered

Addendum to the Probable Hydrologic Consequence July 2002

Addendum to the Probable Hydrologic Consequence July 2002

← Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Appendix A -

Petersen Hydrologic, Inc. Report
Water Monitoring sites compared to PHDI

Deleted: 1

- Historic Water Well Levels
- Field and Lab Data
- Stiff Diagrams
- James Canyon Wells - Water Quality Analysis
- Mud Creek Discharge Analysis
- Discharge Water Tables 8/2001-3/2003

Appendix B -

NorWest Technical Report
Manti-La Sal National Forest Flat Canyon EIS

← Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Appendix C -

Hydrologic Consultants Inc. Progress Report No. 2
Updated Conceptual Hydrogeology, Evaluation of Current and Future Dewatering, and Proposed Testing Program for Skyline Mine

← Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", First line: 0"

← Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Appendix D -

EarthFax Engineering, Inc Reports
Hydrologic and Channel-Stability Evaluation of Eccles and Mud Creeks

← Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", First line: 0"

← Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", First line: 0"

Appendix A - Mt. Nebo Scientific Report on Riparian Communities at Eccles Creek and Mud Creek, December 2001

Appendix B - Results of Soil Laboratory Analysis

Appendix C - Results of Channel Structural Stability Evaluation

Appendix D - Results of Channel Erosional Stability Evaluation

Addendum to Skyline Mine Discharge Evaluation

Appendix E -
Scofield Reservoir Studies

Non-point Source Pollution and Fisheries in Scofield Reservoir, Carbon County, Utah, January 1991

Scofield Reservoir Restoration through Phosphorous Control

Synopsis of Water Quality Issues at Scofield Reservoir

DNR Memorandum - Update on the Water Pollution Issues at Scofield Reservoir, February 1989

Why Scofield Reservoir is Eutrophic: Effects of Nonpoint-Source Pollutants on a Water Sully Reservoir in Utah

Scofield Reservoir Phase I 314 Clean Lakes Study 1980-1982

Table of Contents

Addendum to the Probable Hydrologic Consequence
October 2002
Volume 2

Appendix F -
October 1, 2002 Internal Correspondence - Expected Water Inflow Rates

Appendix G -
Petersen Hydrologic Inc. Report
Investigation of Fault-related Groundwater Inflows at the Skyline Mine, 27 October 2002

Appendix H -
Hydrologic Consultants Inc. Technical Memorandum
Status of Ground-Water Flow Modeling for Skyline Mine, May 2002

Appendix I -
Petersen Hydrologic, Inc.
Summary of ongoing dye tracing study at Electric Lake, June 2003

Appendix J -
Hydrologic Consultants, Inc.
Findings of Ground-Water Flow Modeling of Skyline Mine and Surrounding Area, Carbon, Sanpete, and Emery Counties, Utah, September 2003

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", First line: 0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.5", First line: 0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.5", First line: 0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", First line: 0"

Appendix K -

Hydrologic Consultants, Inc.

Supplemental Report - Ground-Water Flow Modeling of Skyline Mine
and Surrounding Area, Carbon, Sanpete, and emery Counties, Utah,
June 2004

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", First
line: 0"

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", First
line: 0"

Table of Contents

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: MINING OPERATION PLAN</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
3.1 Skyline Mining Operation Plan	3-1
3.1.1 Projecting Mine Development	3-1
3.1.2 Mine Development Plan	3-2
3.1.3 Method Of Mining	3-6
3.1.4 Proposed Production Rate	3-9
3.1.5 Maximum Economic Recovery and Rate Data	3-9
3.1.6 Multiple Seam Mining, Rationale and Specifications	3-11
3.1.7 Plans for Protecting Oil and Gas Wells	3-13
3.1.8 Mine Maps	3-14
3.2 Components of Operation	3-15
3.2.1 Ponds, Impoundments and Dams	3-15
3.2.2 Overburden and Topsoil Handling	3-23
3.2.3 Coal Processing	3-23
3.2.4 Mine Surface Facilities - General Layout	3-28
3.2.5 Water Pollution Control Facilities	3-32
3.2.6 Procedures for Construction Through Removal of Major Structures and Facilities	3-33
3.2.7 Signs and Markers	3-44
3.2.8 Plan for Disposal of Rock Waste	3-45

	<u>Waste Rock Road Snow Removal Plan</u>	<u>3-</u>
	<u>55(b)</u>	

3.2.9	Blasting	3-57
-------	----------	------

Table of Contents

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: MINING OPERATION PLAN</u>	(continued)	<u>PAGE</u>
--------------------------------------	-------------	-------------

3.2.10	Electrical Power	3-57
--------	------------------	------

3.2.11	South Fork Breakout Area	3-58
--------	--------------------------	------

3.2.11(a)	James Canyon Area	3-63(a)
-----------	-------------------	---------

3.2.12	Areas Not Reporting to Sedimentation Ponds, Alternate Sediment Control Areas & Special Exempt Areas	3-64
--------	--	------

<u>Exhibit 1</u>	<u>Guidelines on Perimeter Markers and Raptor Protection on Power Lines</u>	<u>3-59</u>
------------------	---	-------------

<u>Exhibit 2</u>	<u>Raptor Protection on 46K Facilities</u>	<u>3-61</u>
------------------	--	-------------

<u>Exhibit A</u>	<u>Waste Rock Site Lease Agreement</u>	<u>3-73</u>
------------------	--	-------------

<u>Exhibit B</u>	<u>Permission to Stockpile Snow on UDOT pad</u>	
------------------	---	--

<u>Exhibit C</u>	<u>3.7 Geotechnical Drilling within Disturbed Area</u>	
------------------	--	--

<u>Exhibit D</u>	<u>Underground Waste Rock Slurry Plan</u>	
------------------	---	--

3.2.13	James Canyon Pipeline	3-80(a)
--------	-----------------------	---------

3.3	Timing of Operation	3-81
-----	---------------------	------

3.4	Area Affected by Each Phase of Operations	3-83
-----	---	------

3.5	Major Equipment List	3-85
-----	----------------------	------

3.6	Existing Structures to be Used in the Operations	3-97
-----	--	------

<u>PART 3: FIGURES</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
------------------------	--	-------------

<u>Figure</u>	<u>Typical Road Cross-Section with Power Line Trench 2 through 5 3-28(b)-3-28(e)</u>	
---------------	--	--

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0"

Figure	3.2.8-A	<u>Rock Disposal Site</u> <u>Access Road Typical Section</u>	3-52
Figure	3.2.8-B	<u>Overland Conveyor Section</u> <u>through Tunnel</u>	3-52 (a)
Figure	3.2.8-C	<u>Rock Disposal Site</u>	
Figure	3.2.13A	Typical Pipeline Section	3-80 (b)
Figure		James Canyon Road Sections 1 through 6 3-63 (c) through 3-63 (h)	

PART 3: TABLES

Table		<u>James Canyon Final Revegetation Mix</u>	<u>3-28 (f)</u>
Table 3-5-1		Equipment List by Section	3-86

PART 3: DRAWINGS SECTION

NUMBER

Mine 3 Level 1	3.1.8-1
Mine 3 Levels 2 and 3 Mine Plan	3.1.8-2
Mine Surface Facilities Plot Plan	3.2.1-1
Portal Surface Facilities - Sedimentation Pond Sections and Details	3.2.1-2
<u>Table of Contents</u>	

VOLUME 2

PART 3: DRAWINGS SECTION (continued)

NUMBER

New Inlet Structure for Minesite Sedimentation Pond	3.2.1-2A
Mine Portal Sedimentation Pond - Contour Map	3.2.1-2B
Loadout Facilities Drainage & Permit Boundary Map	3.2.1-3
Sedimentation Pond Sections & Details - Civil	3.2.1-4
New Inlet Structure for Train Loadout Sedimentation Pond	3.2.1-4A
Mine Site Flow Sheet	3.2.3-1
Rail Loadout Flow Sheet	3.2.3-1A

Maintenance Cart	3.2.3-2
Overland Pipe Conveyor - <u>60' Standard Truss</u>	3.2.3-2A
Overland Pipe Conveyor Tunnel Layout at Tail End	3.2.3-2B
Overland Pipe Conveyor Mine Road Underpass	3.2.3-2C
Overland Pipe Conveyor Head <u>End</u>	3-2.3-2D
Overland Conveyor Route and Boundaries - <u>1 Tail End</u>	3.2.3-3
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - <u>2</u>	3.2.3-3A
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - <u>3</u>	3.2.3-3B
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - <u>4</u>	3.2.3-3C
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - <u>5</u>	3.2.3-3D
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - <u>6</u>	3.2.3-3E
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - <u>7</u>	3.2.3-3F
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - <u>Lower Section</u>	3.2.3-3G
<u>Table of Contents</u>	

Deleted: e

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: DRAWINGS SECTION</u> (continued)	<u>NUMBER</u>
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries	3.2.3-3H
Miscellaneous Permit and Disturbed Boundary Areas	3.2.3-3I
Open Coal Storage Areas	3.2.3-4
Eccles Creek Watershed Areas	3.2.4-2
Water and Wastewater Flow Sheet	3.2.5-1
North Fork Drainage Design Details Sheet	3.2.6-1B
Inlet Structure - Middle Fork	3.2.6-1C
Typical Trash Rack for Inlet Structure	3.2.6-1D

Access Road to Rock Waste Disposal	3.2.8-1	
Rock Waste <u>Facilities and Drainage Control</u>	3.2.8-2	Deleted: Disposal Area
Waste Rock Disposal Site - <u>Surface Drainage at Selected Elevations</u>	3.2.8-2A	Deleted: Surface Facilities
Watershed Areas for Drainage Design - <u>All Disturbed Areas</u>	3.2.8-3	
Waste Rock Facilities Pond Details & Profiles	3.2.8-4	
Portal Breakout Area - <u>South Fork</u>	3.2.11-1	
James Canyon Well JC-3 Pump and Piping Details Sheets C-1 through C-4	3.2.11-A	
Five Year Projection - Upper O'Connor Seam	3.3-1	
Lower O'Connor "A"/Flat Canyon - Five Year Projected Mine Plan	3.3-2	
Lower O'Connor B Seam - Isopac Map	3.3-3	
James Canyon Disturbed Area Map	3.4-1	

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
4.1 Reclamation Plan - Introduction	4-1
4.1.1 Reclamation Plan - Rock Disposal Site	4-3(a)
4.2 Reclamation Timetable	4-5
4.3 Cost Estimate for Performance Bond	4-12
4.4 Backfill, Soil Stabilization, Compaction, Contouring and Grading	4-27
4.4.1 Backfill and Compaction	4-27
4.4.2 Grading and Final Contour	4-28
4.4.3 Soil Stabilization	4-29

4.4.4	Stabilization of Rills and Gullies	4-29
4.4.5	Acid and Toxic Forming Materials	4-29 (a)
4.4.6	James Canyon Road and Drill Pad	4-30 (a)
4.5	Soil Preparation and Fertilization Plan	4-32
4.6	Topsoil and Subsoil Handling Plan	4-34
4.6.1	Topsoil Removal	4-34
4.6.2	Topsoil Stockpile	4-35
4.6.3	Topsoil Protection	4-35
4.6.4	Topsoil Redistribution	4-36
4.6.4.1	Coal Mine Waste Disposal Site	4-38 (a)
4.6.5	South Fork Breakout	4-39 (a)
4.7	Revegetation Plan	4-42

Deleted: -

Deleted: . . Rock

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

		<u>PAGE</u>
<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>		
4.7.1	Species and Amount per Acre, Portal and Train Loadout Areas	4-42
4.7.2	Seeding Tillage and Mulching, Portal and Train Loadout Areas	4-43
4.7.3	Revegetation & Stabilization of the Conveyor Bench	4-45
4.7.4	Irrigation, Portal and Train Loadout Areas	4-45 (b)
4.7.5	Monitoring Procedures, Portal and Train Loadout, Waste Rock Site, South Fork, and other small areas	4-46
4.7.6	Soil Testing, Portal and Train Loadout Area	4-48
4.7.7	Scofield Waste Rock Disposal Site	4-48
4.7.8	South Fork Breakout	4-50

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 1.5", Tabs: -1", Left + -0.5", Left + 0", Left + 0.5", Left + 1", Left + 1.5", Left + 2", Left + 2.5", Left + 3", Left + 3.5", Left + 4", Left + 4.5", Left + 5", Left + 5.5", Left + 6", Left + 6.5", Left + Not at 6.56"

Deleted: A

4.8	Hazardous & Flammable Materials Disposal & Contingency Plan	4-59
4.8.1	Non-Coal Waste Materials Disposal	4-59
4.8.2	Diesel Fuel and Gasoline and Oil Storage	4-59
4.8.3	Explosive Magazines	4-60
4.8.4	Hazardous Materials	4-61
4.8.5	Slides and Other Damage	4-61
4.9	Opening and Sealing Plans	4-62
4.10	Safety and Compliance Program	4-65
4.11	Protection of Hydrological Balance - Permit and Adjacent Areas	4-67

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
4.11.1 Water Rights and Replacements	4-67
4.11.2 Monitoring Program	4-68
4.11.3 Water Quality	4-69
4.11.4 Water Quantity - <u>Impacts</u>	4-69
4.11.5 Mine Facilities Drainage Area	4-71
4.11.6 Loadout Site Drainage	4-71
4.11.7 Portal Locations	4-71
4.11.8 Underground Water Treatment	4-71
4.12 Postmining Landuse	4-73
4.12.1 Method of Achieving and Supporting Postmining Landuses	4-73
4.12.2 Proposed Underground Mining Activities and Consistency With Landuse Plans	4-79
4.12.3 Visual Resource Assessment to Achieve Postmining Landuse	<u>4-79 (a)</u>
4.12.4 Recreational Resource Assessment to Achieve the Postmining Landuse	4-80
4.12.5 Mineral Resource Assessment to Achieve the Postmining Landuse	4-80
4.12.6 Rock Disposal Site	4-80
4.13 Ponds, Impoundments, Banks, Dams and Embankments - Mine Plan Area	4-82

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN</u> (continued)	<u>PAGE</u>	
4.13.1	Sedimentation Ponds	4-82
4.13.2	Impoundments	4-83 (a)
4.13.2.1	Upper Stock Pond	4-83 (a)
4.13.2.2	Lower Ponds	4-83 (b)
4.14	Protection of Public Parks and Historic Places	4-84
4.15	Relocation or Use of Public Roads	4-85
4.16	Underground Development Waste and Excess Surface Spoil	4-87
4.16.1	Waste Rock Disposal General Description	4-88
4.17	Subsidence Control Plan	4-91
4.17.1	Subsidence Probability Survey	4-91
4.17.2	Mining Methods	4-92 4-94
4.17.3	Subsidence Effect Prevention Measures	4-93 4-94
4.17.4	Mitigation of Subsidence Effects	4-95 (b)
4.17.5	Subsidence Monitoring Program	4-97
4.17.6	Subsidence Control	4-101
4.17.7	Public Notice	4-101
4.17.8	North Lease	4-101
4.18	Fish and Wildlife Plan	4-102
4.18.1	Aquatic Resources - Eccles Creek	4-102
4.18.2	Terrestrial Wildlife Resources	4-102

Deleted: -

Deleted: -

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
4.19	Stream Diversions	4-104
4.19.1	Mine Site Stream Diversion	4-104
4.19.2	Mine Site Diversion Channels	4-105
4.19.3	Coal Storage Stream Diversion <u>(RRLO)</u>	4-105
4.19.4	Coal Storage Diversion Channel <u>(RRLO)</u>	4-106
4.19.5	Reclamation of Diversions and Channels Portal Area	4-107
4.19.6	Reclamation of Diversions and Channels Loadout Area	4-109
4.19.7	Diversion Channel at Rock Disposal Site	4-109
4.19.8	South Fork Breakout	4-109(a)
4.20	Transportation Facilities - Roads, Conveyors, Rail Systems	4-111
4.20.1	Transportation Roads	4-111
4.20.2	Overland Conveyor Belt	4-113(a)
4.20.3	Railroad Systems	4-114
4.20.4	Loadout Access Road	4-114
4.21	Return of Coal Processing Waste to Abandoned Underground Workings	4-117
4.22	Air Pollution Control Plan	4-118

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
4.22.1	Fugitive Dust Sources	4-118
4.22.2	Description of Emission Sources and Controls	4-119
4.22.3	Air Quality Control Monitoring	4-121
4.22.4	Operational Procedures and Monitoring	4-123
4.23	Alluvial Valley Floors	4-123
4.23.1	Climatological Conditions	4-123
4.23.2	Consumptive Use	4-124
4.23.3	Conclusions	4-125
4.24	Support Facilities Not Located Within the Project Area	4-128
4.25	Exploration	4-129
 <u>PART 4: EXHIBITS</u>		 <u>PAGE</u>
<u>Exhibit 1</u>	<u>Waste Rock Site Post mining Land use</u>	<u>4-4</u>
<u>Exhibit 4.4.5</u>	<u>Acid and Toxic-Forming Material Data</u>	<u>4-31</u>
<u>Exhibit 4.12.1</u>	<u>Landowner Letter wanting Stock ponds</u>	<u>4-78</u>
<u>Exhibit 4.17.4.1</u>	<u>SR-264 UDOT Subsidence Impact agreement</u>	<u>4-96</u>
<u>Exhibit 4.22-1</u>	<u>Approval Order for Increased Coal Production</u>	<u>4-122(a)</u>

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: MAPS AND FIGURES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
Map 4.9-A Portal Seal	4-63
Map 4.17.1-1 Extent of Planned and Controlled Subsidence Areas	4-92
<u>Map 4.20.1A Mine and RRLO Road Cross Section</u>	<u>4-116A</u>
<u>Map 4.20.1B Mine and RRLO Road Cross Section</u>	<u>4-116B</u>
<u>PART 4: DRAWINGS SECTION</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Mine Surface Facilities Reclamation Plan	4.4.2-1A
Minesite As-Built	4.4.2-1AA
Eccles Creek Reclamation Details	4.4.2-1AC
Minesite Cross Sections	4.4.2-1B
<u>Mine Site Reclamation Stream Gradients</u>	4.4.2-1B1
Loadout Surface Facilities Reclamation Plan	4.4.2-1C
Reclamation Cross Sections RRLO	4.4.2-1D
Water Tank Site Reclamation Plan	4.4.2-1E
Water Tank Location	4.4.2-1F
South Fork Portals Reclamation Cross-Sections	4.6.5-1
Mining Production VS Water Discharge	4.11.4-A
Rock Disposal Site Area	4.16.1-1A
Rock Disposal Site Reclamation Plan	4.16.1-1B
<u>Waste Rock Disposal Site Final Reclamation Plan</u>	<u>4.16.1-1C</u>
Stream Gradient Profiles with Projected Subsidence Winter Quarters and Woods Canyon	4.17.1-1
Stream Gradient Profiles with Projected Subsidence Winter Quarters	4.17.1-2
Cumulative Subsidence 1990	4.17.3-1
North Lease Pre-subsidence Survey Map	4.17.3-1A
Subsidence Monitoring Points	4.17.5-1
Cross Section - South Fork of Eccles Creek	4.19.5-1
Cross Section - Middle Fork of Eccles Creek	4.19.5-2

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

Deleted: nt

Deleted: 82-2004

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: TABLES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
4.2-1 Reclamation Timetable	4-6
4.3-1 Bonding Calculation	4-13
4.6-1 Topsoil Stockpile Seed Mixture	4-37
<u>4.6-4 Topsoil Redistribution</u>	<u>4-38(c)</u>
4.7-1 Seed Mixture - <u>South-facing slopes</u>	4-51
4.7-2 North-Facing Slopes	4-52
4.7-3 Riparian Habitat Seed Mixture	4-53
4.7-4 Seed Mixture - South to West	4-54
4.7-5 Seed Mixture - North to East	4-55
4.7-6 Shrub Supplement - Riparian Zone	4-56
4.7-6A Seed Mixture - Waste Rock Disposal Site	4-57
4.7-7 Acreages and Proportion of Disturbed Areas	4-58
4.12-1 Proposed Postmining Landuse	4-75
<u>4.17.5A Subsidence - Calculated vs. Actual</u>	<u>4-99b</u>
<u>4.17.5B Subsidence - Angle of Draw</u>	<u>4-99b</u>
4.23-1 Consumptive Use of Water by Big Sagebrush	4-126
4.23-2 Consumptive Use Calculations for Riparian Grasses	4-126
<u>PART 5: CROSS REFERENCE</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
5.1 Cross Reference	5-1

Table of Contents

VOLUME 4

| Climatological Summary 1984-1991

| Water Quality Tabulations

| Water Monitoring Site data 1981-1991

Summary of Water Quality Analysis

| Graphs of Water Quality Data

Water Well Data Summary

| Water Rights

VOLUME 4

2nd Binder

| Water Rights (continued)

| Work Plan to Evaluate Mine-Water Discharge Impacts in Eccles and Mud Creeks

Deleted: Statistical Summary of Water Quality Analysis
1

Deleted: w

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Superscript

Table of Contents

VOLUME 5

BINDER 1

Formatted: Centered

- 1 Slope Stability Evaluations and Access Road Embankments -
Sedimentation Ponds, Miscellaneous Fills, Facilities and Designs
- 2 Estimate of Peak Flow Discharge
- 3 Mine Site CSP Design
- 4 Portal Area Swale and Concrete V-Ditch Design
- 5 Undisturbed Areas Drainage Ditch Designs
- 6 Disturbed Area Drainage Portal Area
- 7 Stage Volume Portal Area
- 8 Topsoil Diversions
- 9 Train Loadout Undisturbed Area Drainage
- 10 Train Loadout Disturbed Drainage
- 11 Train Loadout Area Swale Design
- 12 Hydrology Study Culvert East End Train Loadout CU-16
- 13 Loadout Area Sedimentation Pond
- 14 Drainage Control Waste Rock Disposal Site

VOLUME 5

BINDER 2

Formatted: Centered

- 15 Waste Rock Disposal Sediment Pond
- 16 Waste Rock Disposal Area Capacity and Schedule
- 17 Reclamation Costs
- 18 Reclaimed Channel Designs
- 19 Hydrology Study South Fork Breakout Area
- 20 Designs For ASCA Treatments
- 21 Demonstrations for Exempt Areas
- 21a Demonstrations for Exempt Areas (14 sites)

Deleted: 21.

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

22 Undisturbed Drainage Ditch and Culvert to Route Runoff Around James Canyon Water Wells

23 SEDCAD demonstrations for ASCA Areas

Environmental Assessment - Coal Lease Application UTU-67939 Winter Quarters Tract

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 21 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.09" + Tab after: 0.6" + Indent at: 0.6"

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-1

Aerial Photographs

Hydrology

Hydrologic Inventory of the Skyline Property and Adjacent areas, Carbon and Emery Counties, Utah - Vaughn Hansen Associates, October 1979

Determination of the 100-year Flood Plain of Eccles Creek and Mud Creek, Vaughn Hansen Associates, May 1980

General Hydrologic Considerations Related to Coal Development and Subsequent Impacts, Vaughn Hansen Associates, February 1981

UP&L Tract, Surface and Ground Water Baseline Water Monitoring Data, April 2001

Utah Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (UPDES) Permit, UT0023540, October 1999

Air Quality

Summary Report for Coatal States Energy Company, Radian Coporation, October 1979

Approval Order for Modification of Skyline Coal Handling Facility, Carbon County, Utah, State of Utah, January 1992

Volume A-1 Volume 2

Investigation of Surface and Groundwater Systems in the Vicinity of the Skyline Mine, Carbon, Emry, and Sanpete Counties, Utah. Probable Hydrologic Consequences of Coal Mining at the Skyline Mines and Recommendations for Surface and Groundwater Monitoring, Mayo and Associates, Mayo and Associates, September 1996

Skyline Mine Subsidence Study, Changes in Stream Channel Characteristics and Hydraulic Parameters Related to Surface Subsidence, July, 1998

EarthFax Engineering, Perennial Length and Gradient Studies of Winter Quarters Canyon and Woods Canyon Creeks, 2002 and 2003 (also located in Volume A-2, Volume 2)

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font color: Lime

Formatted: Font color: Lime

Deleted: Hydrologic Inventory of the Skyline Property and Adjacent Areas¶

¶

Determination of the 100-year Flood Plain of Eccles Creek and Mud Creek¶

¶

General Hydrologic Considerations Related to Coal Development and Subsequent Impacts¶

¶

UPDES Permit¶

¶

Air Quality¶

¶

Radian Report¶

¶

¶

¶

¶

¶

¶

¶

¶

¶

¶

Revised 08-29-05

1-xxvi

Table of Contents

VOLUME A-2

SOILS AND VEGETATION

Report of Vegetation, Plant Community Analysis, Threatened and Endangered Plant Species, Soils and Reclamation Plan, A Vaughn Hansen Associates, February 1980

Skyline Project Supplemental Soils Report, Endangered Plant Studies, Inc. June 1980

Report of Vegetation and Soils, Proposes Waste Rock Disposal Site, Skyline Mine, November 1981

Response to Stipulations regarding Vegetation and Soils for the Skyline Mine, December 1981

Response to Deficiencies in the Waste Rock Disposal Area Report, August 1982

Vegetation Monitoring of Reclaimed Slopes and Corresponding Reference Areas at the Skyline Mine, August 1985

Production of Reference Areas, Soil Conservation Service, October 1987

Conveyor Bench Revegetation Plan - SCS Document, August 1988

Soil Characteristics on the Proposed Conveyor Construction Site, Sheldon D. Nelson, Ph.D., January 1991

Plant Community Types on the Proposed Conveyor Routes, Stanley B. Welsh, Ph.D., January 1991

Vegetation Sampling of Proposed Conveyor Rout and Response to Technical Deficiency Review, Endangered Plant Studies, Inc. June 1992

TERRESTRIAL WILDLIFE

Wildlife Assessment of the Skyline Mining Property and Adjacent Areas, Clyde L. Pritchett, April 1980

The Skyline Mine - AviFauna, Dr. Clayton White, Dept. of Zoology, Brigham Young University,

Mammals - Endangered and Threatened Species, Dr. C. Pritchett and Dr. H.D. Smith, Dept. of Zoology, Brigham Young University.

Deleted: 1

Deleted: Skyline Project Supplemental Soils Report

Deleted: Vegetation Monitoring of Reclaimed Slopes and Corresponding Reference Areas - 1985

Report of Revegetation Success and Vegetation Monitoring of Reclaimed and Reference Areas at Skyline Mine During the 1982 Field Season

Formatted: Font color: Lime

Deleted: Response to Stipulations Regarding Vegetation and Soils for the Skyline Mine - December 1981

Deleted: Conveyor Bench Revegetation Plan - SCS Document

Deleted: Conveyor Bench Revegetation Plan Progress Summary (1988 - 1991)

SCS letter on Condition and Production of Reference Area (10/87)

Vegetation and Soils Maps for Proposed Conveyor Route, (1991)

Riparian Plant Community Survey Near Scofield, Utah, Winter Quarters Canyon and Woods Canyon, 2002

Deleted: (1980)

Deleted: e

Baseline Data Report on Presence and Utilization of Eccles Canyon by Elk, Mule Deer and Moose, H. D. Smith, C.L. Pritchette, M. Oveson, E. Robey, (12/1981)

Deleted: o
Deleted: ro
Deleted: aby

Revised 01-12-2006

1-xxvii

AVIFAUNA REPORTS

Deleted: Baseline Data Report on Presence and Utilization of Eccles Canyon by Elk, Mule Deer and Moose

Skyline Mine Project - Interim Findings, 8 June 1980, Clayton M. White, Dept. of Zoology, Brigham Young University

The Avifauna and Raptors of the Skyline Mine Project - Final Report July, 1980

Deleted: (
Deleted:)

Additional Avifauna Information located in Confidential Binder

Additional Wildlife Information located in Confidential Binder

Table of Contents

VOLUME A-2, Volume 2

SOILS AND VEGETATION

GOB Pile Expansion Soils Report (November 1998)

James Canyon Vegetation Study, Mt. Nebo Scientific (September 2001)

James Canyon Soils Report, EIS Environmental and Engineering Consultants (September 2001)

Exhibit 2.75 - Data Adequacy Information for the Skyline Mine: Vegetation of the Winter Quarters tract, Mt Nebo Scientific (May 14, 1992)

Sample Analysis Results of Waste Rock and Electric Lake Sediment Used to Reclaim South Fork Portals, Mine 1 (2003)

Exhibit 2.14b - NRCS Prime Farmland Determination (August 1996)

Riparian Plant Community Survey Near Scofield, Utah. Winter Quarters Canyon and Woods Canyon 2002, Mt Nebo Scientific (2002)

EarthFax Engineering - Winter Quarters Canyon and Woods Canyon GPS Survey, Perennial Length and Gradient Studies of Winter Quarters Canyon and Woods Canyon, 2002 (letter dated June 2004, also located in Volume A-1, Volume 2)

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek and Woods Canyon Creek - A Study Plan, May 9, 2005

TERRESTRIAL WILDLIFE

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek & Woods Canyon Creek - A Study Plan, May 9, 2005, (Amphibians pg. 4, Macroinvertebrates, Pg. 6, Spotted frog, pg. 12)

AVIFAUNA REPORTS

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Creek and Woods Canyon Creek - A Study Plan, May 9, 2005, Mt. Nebo Scientific (Northern Goshawk, pg. 9, Northern Three-toed Woodpecker, pg. 11)

Revised 01-12-2006

1-xxviii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-3

ARCHEOLOGICAL REPORTS

- Notice, Moved to Confidential File, August 2005

Formatted: Underline

Deleted: Archeological Reports

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Underline

HISTORICAL REPORTS

- Notice, Moved to Confidential File, August 2005

Formatted: Underline

Deleted: Historical Reports

AQUATIC WILDLIFE

Impact to Eccles Creek cutthroat trout, Division of Wildlife, June 1990

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Aquatic Ecology of Surface Waters Associated with the Skyline Project - General Aquatic Resource Description Fish Habitat Plan, January 1980

Deleted: A Brief History of the Eccles Canyon Coal Mine
Aquatic Wildlife

Aquatic Ecology of Surface Waters Associated with the Skyline Project - Fish (and Wildlife) Habitat Plan, January 1980

Monitoring of Aquatic Macroinvertebrates and Sediments in the Eccles Creek Drainage - December 1985

Deleted: General Aquatic Resource Description
Fish Habitat Plan

Monitoring Aquatic Macroinvertebrates, Sediments and Habitat Recovery of Eccles Creek - 1984 Summary

Recovery of the Cutthroat Trout (*Salmo clarki*) Fishery in Eccles Creek, Utah, From Coal Mining Impacts

Stream Diversion Documentation, August 1980

GEOTECHNICAL

Deleted: Geotechnical

Formatted: Font: Bold

Dames and Moore Report - Geotechnical Investigation, Skyline Coal Mine Project, Approximately seven miles south southwest of Scofield, Utah, October 1979

GEOLOGY

Roy Full Report, September 1979

Roy Full Report, February 1980

Geologic Cross Sections

Deleted: Geology ¶

Formatted: Font: Bold

Deleted: s

Deleted: Macroinvertebrates
Studies, 2002 and 2003,
Winter Quarters and Woods
Canyon ¶

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-3, Volume 2

Baseline Monitoring of the Benthos in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek & Woods Canyon Creek - October 2002 & June 2003

Baseline Monitoring of the Benthos in Winter Quarters Creek & Woods Canyon Creek - October 2003 & June 2004

An Electrofishing Survey of Woods & Winter Quarters Canyons, October 2002

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek & Woods Canyon Creek, May 9, 2005

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-4

| Drill Hole Geology - See Confidential File

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 1: LEGAL FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
Application for Renewal		
110	Minimum Requirements for Legal, Financial, Compliance and Related Information	General Chapter 1
111	Introduction	General Chapter 1
112	Identification of Interests	General Chapter 1
112.100	Business Entity	General Chapter 1
112.200	Applicant and Operator	General Chapter 1
112.300	Control Persons	General Chapter 1
112.400	Coal Mining and Reclamation Operation Permit Applications Previous, Current or Pending	1-14
112.500	Legal or Equitable Owner of the Surface Mineral Properties to be Mined	1-19
112.600	Owners of Record of Property Contiguous to Proposed Permit Area	1-19
112.700	MSHA Numbers	1-21
112.800	Interest in Contiguous Lands	1-24
112.900	Certification of Submitted Information	1-25
113	Violation Information	General Chapter 1
114	Right-of-Entry Information	1-30
115	Status of Unsuitability Claims	1-36
116	Permit Term [unchanged]	1-36
117	Insurance Certificate	General Chapter 1
118	Filing Fee [not applicable]	1-40
120	Permit Application Format and Contents	1-41
130	Reporting and Technical Data	1-41
140	Maps and Plans	1-41
150	Completeness	1-41

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1-0	Coal Mining and Reclamation Operations	General Chapter 1
Table 1-1	List of Violations - Soldier Canyon Mine and Banning Load Out, Dugout Canyon Mine - Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining NOV History	General Chapter 1
Table 1-2	List of Violations - SUFCO Mine - Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining NOV History	General Chapter 1
Table 1-3	List of Violations - Skyline Mines - Utah Division of Oil, Gas and Mining NOV History	General Chapter 1
Table 1-4	Certificate of Violations - Affiliated Companies	General Chapter 1
Table 1-114	Permit Acreage, Coal and Surface Ownership	General Chapter 1

LIST OF FIGURES

Corporate Ownership	General Chapter 1
Corporate Organization	General Chapter 1
Ashland Coal Ownership	General Chapter 1

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix¹

117-A Certificate of Liability Insurance	General Chapter 1
118-A Right-of-Entry	

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 1: EXHIBITS</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
1.14-1 Announcement	Appendix 114-A
1.14-2 UP&L Tract Lease Agreement	
1.14-3 BLM Letter to Include Lawrence Reservoir	
<u>PART 1: DRAWINGS SECTION</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Skyline Mines - Ownership	1.6-1
Coal Ownership	1.6-2
Skyline Mines Permit Area	1.6-3
Skyline Buried Pipe and Power lines	1.6-3A
<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.0 Introduction	2-0
2.1 General Environmental Resources Summary	2-1
2.1.1 Description of Cultural, Historical and Archeological Resources	2-3
2.1.2 Threatened and Endangered Species	2-4d
2.2 Geology	2-5
2.2.1 Stratigraphy	2-5
2.2.2 Star Point Sandstone	2-5
2.2.3 Blackhawk Formation	2-8
2.2.4 Intrusive Igneous Rock	2-9

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
2.2.5	Surficial Deposits	2-9
2.2.6	Structural Geology	2-9
2.2.7	Mineable Coal Deposits	Confidential File
2.2.8	Other Mineral Deposits	2-16
2.2.9	Waste Rock Disposal Site	2-20
2.2.10	General Geology of the Rock Disposal Site	2-21
2.2.11	Plans for Casing and Sealing Holes	2-21(a)
2.3	Ground Water Hydrology	2-22
2.3.1	Geologic Setting of the Ground Water System	2-23
2.3.2	Characteristics of Seeps and Springs	2-25(a)
2.3.3	Stream Seepage	2-27
2.3.4	Aquifer Characteristics	2-28
2.3.4.1	Waste Rock Disposal Site	2-30
2.3.4.2	Coal Loadout Site	2-30(c)
2.3.4.3	Conveyor Route in Eccles Canyon	2-30(h)
2.3.5	Uses of Water in the Aquifers	2-30(j)
2.3.5.1	Surface Water Rights	2-30(j)
2.3.5.2	Ground Water Rights	2-30(k)
2.3.6	Ground Water Quality	2-31
2.3.7	Ground Water Monitoring Program	2-33

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.4 Surface Water Hydrology	2-40
2.4.1 Drainage Basin Characteristics	2-40
2.4.2 Flow Characteristics	2-42
2.4.3 Sediment Yield	2-43 (a)
2.4.4 Monitoring Program	2-43 (b)
2.5 Hydrological Impacts of Mining Activities	2-48
2.5.1 Potentially Affected Water Rights	2-48
2.5.2 Mining Impact on Water Quantity	2-49
2.5.3 Alternative Water Supply	2-51 (e)
2.6 Climate	2-52
2.6.1 Climatological and Air Quality Monitoring Program	2-52
2.6.2 Synopsis of Data	2-55
2.7 Vegetation	2-58
2.7.1 General Description	2-58
2.7.2 Community Analysis-Results and Discussions	2-58 (a)
2.7.3 Threatened and Endangered Plant species	2-58 (c)
2.7.4 Potential for Reestablishing Vegetation	2-58 (d)
2.7.5 UP&L Tract	2-59
2.7.6 Vegetation of the North Lease Tract Area	2-61
Attachment 1 Condition and Production of James Canyon Reference Area	

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES</u> (continued)	<u>PAGE</u>
2.8 Aquatic Wildlife Resources	2-65
2.8.1 Aquatic Monitoring Program	2-70
2.9 Terrestrial Wildlife	2-79
2.9.1 Species Status Lists	2-80
2.9.2 Project Impact Analysis by High-Interest Species	2-87
2.9.2.1 Mammals	2-88
2.9.2.2 Herpetofauna	2-97
2.9.3 Endangered and Threatened Species	2-99
2.9.4 Impact Analysis and Protection of Wildlife	2-99
2.9.5 Terrestrial Wildlife North Lease Tract Area	2-104
2.10 Raptors	2-107
2.10.1 Conclusion	2-111
2.10.2 Raptors of the North Lease Tract Area	2-111(a)
2.11 Soils	2-112
2.12 Landuse	2-122
2.12.1 Existing Land Uses	2-122
2.12.2 Capability and Productivity of the Permit Area Affected by Surface Operations and Facilities	2-126
2.13 Community Infrastructure and Socio-Economics	2-135
2.13.1 Service Area	2-136
2.13.2 Growth Capability	2-137

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
2.13.3	Labor Force	2-139
2.13.4	Suggested Action Items	2-153
2.13.5	Comprehensive Study Program	2-158
2.14	Prime Farmland Investigation	2-161
 <u>PART 2: MAPS, FIGURES AND PLATES</u>		 <u>PAGE</u>
Map	2.2-1 Topographic Map with Surface Geology	2-6
Figure	2.2-A Generalized Columnar Section Eccles Canyon Area	2-7
Figure	2.2.8-1 Gas Well Locations	2-17
Figure	2.3.2-1 Spring Survey - August, 1988 South Fork of Eccles Creek	2-26
Figure	2-30A Cross Section Location Map	2-30D
Figure	2-30B North-South Hydrologic Cross Section A-A ¹ through Coal Loadout Facility Eccles Canyon	2-30E
Figure	2-30C North-South Hydrologic Cross Section B-B ¹ Through Drill Hole TH-5 and Conveyor Route Through Eccles Canyon	2-30F
Figure	2-30D North South Hydrologic Cross Section C-C ¹ Through Well 13-2 and Conveyor Route Eccles Canyon	2-30G
Figure	2.8-A Eccles Creek and Huntington Creek, Carbon and Emery Counties, Utah	2-69

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: MAPS, FIGURES AND PLATES (continued)</u>			<u>PAGE</u>
Figure	2.9.1-A	Winter Range and Migratory Route of Elk Living in the Environs of the Skyline Lease Area	2-91
Figure	2.9.2-B	Winter Range and Migratory Route of Mule Deer Living in the Environs of the Skyline Lease Area	2-94
Figure	2.9.3-A	Distribution Map of Endangered Mammalian Species in Utah in Relation to the Skyline Lease Area	2-100
Figure	2.12-A	Location of the Skyline Project Area	2-123

PART 2: Exhibits

Exhibit 2.3-1	Portions of UPDES permit	2-39
Exhibit "A"	Probable Hydrologic Consequences of Mining -	

<u>PART 2: DRAWINGS SECTION</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Surface Geology	2.2.1-1
Lower O'Conner "A" Isopach Map	2.2.7-1
Flat Canyon Isopac Map	2.2.7-1A
Lower O'Conner "A"/Flat Canyon Overburden Map	2.2.7-2
Lower O'Connor "B" Isopach Map	2.2.7-3
Overburden Isopach Map, Lower O'Connor "B" Seam	2.2.7-4
Upper O'Connor Seam Isopach Map	2.2.7-5
Overburden Isopach Map Upper O'Connor Seam	2.2.7-6
Abandoned Adjacent Working	2.2.7-7

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: DRAWINGS SECTION (continued)</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Fence Diagram: Water Monitoring Wells	2.3.4-1
Cross-Section A - A'	2.3.4-1A
Cross-Section B - B'	2.3.4-1B
Cross-Section C - C'	2.3.4-1C
Potentiometric Surface Map	2.3.4-2
Surface Water Rights on and Adjacent to the Skyline Property	2.3.5.1-1
Ground Water Rights on and Adjacent to the Skyline Property	2.3.5.2-1
Location of Hydrologic Monitoring Stations	2.3.6-1
North Lease Subsidence Hydrologic Monitoring Stations	2.3.6-2
Vegetation Map	2.7.1-1
Vegetative Reference Area	2.7.1-2
Soils Type UP&L Tract	2.7.1-1B
Macroinvertebrate Sample Site Location	2.8.1-1
Portal Yard Area Soil Map	2.11-1
Man Made Features and Existing Land-Uses	2.12.1-1

<u>PART 2: TABLES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.3.1 Claystone in Drill hole comparison	2-24
2.3.7-1 Comprehensive Water Quality Analytical Schedule	2-36
2.3.7-2 Abbreviated Water Quality Analytical Schedule	2-37

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

PART 2: TABLES (continued)

2.3.7-2A	North Lease Subsidence Hydrologic Monitoring	2-37(a)
2.3.7-3	Monitoring Station Identification	2-38
2.3.7-4	Summary Information on Groundwater Observation Wells	2-39
2.3.7-5	Comprehensive Water Quality Analytical Schedule Waste Rock Disposal Site - Well Number 92-21-03	2-39aa
2.8-1	Stream Resource Monitoring Schedule for Eccles Creek	2-72
2.8-1a	Fish / Macroinvertebrate Monitoring Schedule	2-72a
2.8-2	Descriptors of Benthic Communities at Seven Stations on Eccles Creek and Its Major Tributaries, Carbon County, Utah	2-73
2.8-3	Sediment Composition of Gravel Beds at Four Stations on Eccles Creek as Percent of Total Mean Weight for Sediments Passing Through Six USGS Standard Soil Sieve Sizes	2-77
2.9-1	Species List and Classification of Mammals Whose Published Ranges Overlap the Skyline Coal Mine Site	2-81
2.9-2	Species List and Classification of Amphibians Whose Published Ranges Overlap the Skyline Coal Mine Site	2-85
2.9-3	Species List and Classification of Reptiles Whose Published Ranges Overlap the Skyline Coal Mine Site	2-86
2.9-4	Count Lists for Carbon and Emery County Federally Listed Threatened(T), Endangered(E) and Candidate Species	2-104a
2.9-5	Federally Listed Sensitive Species List	2-104c
2.9-6	Sensitive Plant, Wildlife and Fish Species Of Manti-La Sal National Forest (12/07)	2-104f

Table of Contents

VOLUME 1

<u>PART 2: TABLES (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2.10-1 Raptor Species Seen and Habitat Suitability in Manti Division, Manti-LaSal National Forest	2-108
2.12.1-1 Sheep Allotments Data for Four Allotments Contained Partially within Coal Lease Area for Proposed Skyline Mine	2-124
2.12.2-1 Grazing Potential for Area to be Affected by Mining Surface Operations and Facilities	2-128
2.12.3 Farm Ownership, Size, and Yield	2-133 (f)
2.12.4 Farm Grazing Usage	2-133 (g)
2.13-1 Growth Capability Summary	2-138
2.13-2 1986 Workforce - Unemployment Status	2-141
2.13-3 Manpower Distribution - 1988	2-142
2.13-4 Manpower Distribution - 1986	2-143
2.13-5 Manpower Distribution - 1985	2-144
2.13-6 Manpower Distribution - 1984	2-145
2.13-7 Manpower Distribution - 1983	2-146
2.13-8 Manpower Distribution - 1982	2-147
2.13-9 Projected Manpower Levels - 1989 through 1991	2-148
2.13-10 Manning Table for Pleasant Valley Mines	2-150
2.13-11 Comparison of Projected Mines to Open on Federal Land Prior to 1985 and Current Status	2-151
2.13-12 Mining Company Manpower Needs Comparison - 1981 through 1985	2-152

Table of Contents

Addendum to the Probable Hydrologic Consequence
July 2002
(Volume 1)

Addendum to the Probable Hydrologic Consequence July 2002

Appendix A -

Petersen Hydrologic, Inc. Report
Water Monitoring sites compared to PHDI

Historic Water Well Levels

Field and Lab Data

Stiff Diagrams

James Canyon Wells - Water Quality Analysis

Mud Creek Discharge Analysis

Discharge Water Tables 8/2001-3/2003

Appendix B -

NorWest Technical Report
Manti-La Sal National Forest Flat Canyon EIS

Appendix C -

Hydrologic Consultants Inc. Progress Report No. 2
Updated Conceptual Hydrogeology, Evaluation of Current and Future
Dewatering, and Proposed Testing Program for Skyline Mine

Appendix D -

EarthFax Engineering, Inc Reports
Hydrologic and Channel-Stability Evaluation of Eccles and Mud
Creeks

Appendix A - Mt. Nebo Scientific Report on Riparian
Communities at Eccles Creek and Mud Creek, December 2001

Appendix B - Results of Soil Laboratory Analysis

Appendix C - Results of Channel Structural Stability
Evaluation

Appendix D - Results of Channel Erosional Stability
Evaluation

Table of Contents

Addendum to the Probable Hydrologic Consequence
July 2002
(Volume 1)

Appendix D (continued)
Addendum to Skyline Mine Discharge Evaluation

Appendix E -
Scofield Reservoir Studies

Non-point Source Pollution and Fisheries in Scofield
Reservoir, Carbon County, Utah, January 1991

Scofield Reservoir Restoration through Phosphorous Control

Synopsis of Water Quality Issues at Scofield Reservoir

DNR Memorandum - Update on the Water Pollution Issues at
Scofield Reservoir, February 1989

Why Scofield Reservoir is Eutrophic: Effects of Nonpoint-
Source Pollutants on a Water Sully Reservoir in Utah

Scofield Reservoir Phase I 314 Clean Lakes Study 1980-1982

Table of Contents

Addendum to the Probable Hydrologic Consequence
October 2002
Volume 2

- Appendix F -
October 1, 2002 Internal Correspondence - Expected Water Inflow Rates
- Appendix G -
Petersen Hydrologic Inc. Report
Investigation of Fault-related Groundwater Inflows at the Skyline Mine, 27 October 2002
- Appendix H -
Hydrologic Consultants Inc. Technical Memorandum
Status of Ground-Water Flow Modeling for Skyline Mine, May 2002
- Appendix I -
Petersen Hydrologic, Inc.
Summary of ongoing dye tracing study at Electric Lake, June 2003
- Appendix J -
Hydrologic Consultants, Inc.
Findings of Ground-Water Flow Modeling of Skyline Mine and Surrounding Area, Carbon, Sanpete, and Emery Counties, Utah, September 2003
- Appendix K -
Hydrologic Consultants, Inc.
Supplemental Report - Ground-Water Flow Modeling of Skyline Mine and Surrounding Area, Carbon, Sanpete, and emery Counties, Utah, June 2004

Table of Contents

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: MINING OPERATION PLAN</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
3.1 Skyline Mining Operation Plan	3-1
3.1.1 Projecting Mine Development	3-1
3.1.2 Mine Development Plan	3-2
3.1.3 Method Of Mining	3-6
3.1.4 Proposed Production Rate	3-9
3.1.5 Maximum Economic Recovery and Rate Data	3-9
3.1.6 Multiple Seam Mining, Rationale and Specifications	3-11
3.1.7 Plans for Protecting Oil and Gas Wells	3-13
3.1.8 Mine Maps	3-14
3.2 Components of Operation	3-15
3.2.1 Ponds, Impoundments and Dams	3-15
3.2.2 Overburden and Topsoil Handling	3-23
3.2.3 Coal Processing	3-23
3.2.4 Mine Surface Facilities - General Layout	3-28
3.2.5 Water Pollution Control Facilities	3-32
3.2.6 Procedures for Construction Through Removal Of Major Structures and Facilities	3-33
3.2.7 Signs and Markers	3-44
3.2.8 Plan for Disposal of Rock Waste	3-45
Waste Rock Road Snow Removal Plan	3-55(b)

Table of Contents

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: MINING OPERATION PLAN (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
3.2.9	Blasting	3-57
3.2.10	Electrical Power	3-57
3.2.11	South Fork Breakout Area	3-58
3.2.11(a)	James Canyon Area	3-63 (a)
3.2.12	Areas Not Reporting to Sedimentation Ponds, Alternate Sediment Control Areas & Special Exempt Areas	3-64
Exhibit 1	Guidelines on Perimeter Markers and Raptor Protection on Power Lines	3-59
Exhibit 2	Raptor Protection on 46K Facilities	3-61
Exhibit A	Waste Rock Site Lease Agreement	3-73
Exhibit B	Permission to Stockpile Snow on UDOT pad	
Exhibit C	3.7 Geotechnical Drilling within Disturbed Area	
Exhibit D	Underground Waste Rock Slurry Plan	
3.2.13	James Canyon Pipeline	3-80(a)
3.3	Timing of Operation	3-81
3.4	Area Affected by Each Phase of Operations	3-83
3.5	Major Equipment List	3-85
3.6	Existing Structures to be Used in the Operations	3-97
<u>PART 3: FIGURES</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
Figure	Typical Road Cross-Section with Power Line Trench 2 through 5	3-28 (b) -3-28 (e)
Figure	3.2.8-A Rock Disposal Site Access Road Typical Section	3-52

Table of Contents

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: FIGURES (continued)</u>			<u>PAGE</u>
Figure	3.2.8-B	Overland Conveyor Section through Tunnel	3-52 (a)
Figure	3.2.8-C	Rock Disposal Site	
Figure	3.2.13A	Typical Pipeline Section	3-80 (b)
Figure	James Canyon Road Sections 1 through 6		3-63 (c) through 3-63 (h)

PART 3: TABLES

Table	James Canyon Final Revegetation Mix	3-28 (f)
Table 3-5-1	Equipment List by Section	3-86

PART 3: DRAWINGS SECTION

	<u>NUMBER</u>
Mine 3 Level 1	3.1.8-1
Mine 3 Levels 2 and 3 Mine Plan	3.1.8-2
Mine Surface Facilities Plot Plan	3.2.1-1
Portal Surface Facilities - Sedimentation Pond Sections and Details	3.2.1-2
New Inlet Structure for Minesite Sedimentation Pond	3.2.1-2A
Mine Portal Sedimentation Pond - Contour Map	3.2.1-2B
Loadout Facilities Drainage & Permit Boundary Map	3.2.1-3
Sedimentation Pond Sections & Details - Civil	3.2.1-4
New Inlet Structure for Train Loadout Sedimentation Pond	3.2.1-4A
Mine Site Flow Sheet	3.2.3-1
Rail Loadout Flow Sheet	3.2.3-1A

Table of Contents

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: DRAWINGS SECTION (continued)</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Maintenance Cart	3.2.3-2
Overland Pipe Conveyor - 60' Standard Truss	3.2.3-2A
Overland Pipe Conveyor Tunnel Layout at Tail End	3.2.3-2B
Overland Pipe Conveyor Mine Road Underpass	3.2.3-2C
Overland Pipe Conveyor Head End	3-2.3-2D
Overland Conveyor Route and Boundaries - 1 Tail End	3.2.3-3
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - 2	3.2.3-3A
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - 3	3.2.3-3B
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - 4	3.2.3-3C
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - 5	3.2.3-3D
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - 6	3.2.3-3E
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - 7	3.2.3-3F
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries - Lower Section	3.2.3-3G
Overland Conveyor Route and Permit Boundaries	3.2.3-3H
Miscellaneous Permit and Disturbed Boundary Areas	3.2.3-3I
Open Coal Storage Areas	3.2.3-4
Eccles Creek Watershed Areas	3.2.4-2
Water and Wastewater Flow Sheet	3.2.5-1
North Fork Drainage Design Details Sheet	3.2.6-1B
Inlet Structure - Middle Fork	3.2.6-1C
Typical Trash Rack for Inlet Structure	3.2.6-1D

Table of Contents

VOLUME 2

<u>PART 3: DRAWINGS SECTION (continued)</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Access Road to Rock Waste Disposal	3.2.8-1
Rock Waste Facilities and Drainage Control	3.2.8-2
Waste Rock Disposal Site - Surface Drainage at Selected Elevations	3.2.8-2A
Watershed Areas for Drainage Design - All Disturbed Areas	3.2.8-3
Waste Rock Facilities Pond Details & Profiles	3.2.8-4
Portal Breakout Area - South Fork	3.2.11-1
James Canyon Well JC-3 Pump and Piping Details Sheets C-1 through C-4	3.2.11-A
Five Year Projection - Upper O'Connor Seam	3.3-1
Lower O'Connor "A"/Flat Canyon - Five Year Projected Mine Plan	3.3-2
Lower O'Connor B Seam - Isopac Map	3.3-3
James Canyon Disturbed Area Map	3.4-1

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
4.1	Reclamation Plan - Introduction	4-1
4.1.1	Reclamation Plan - Rock Disposal Site	4-3 (a)
4.2	Reclamation Timetable	4-5
4.3	Cost Estimate for Performance Bond	4-12
4.4	Backfill, Soil Stabilization, Compaction, Contouring and Grading	4-27
4.4.1	Backfill and Compaction	4-27
4.4.2	Grading and Final Contour	4-28
4.4.3	Soil Stabilization	4-29
4.4.4	Stabilization of Rills and Gullies	4-29
4.4.5	Acid and Toxic Forming Materials	4-29 (a)
4.4.6	James Canyon Road and Drill Pad	4-30 (a)
4.5	Soil Preparation and Fertilization Plan	4-32
4.6	Topsoil and Subsoil Handling Plan	4-34
4.6.1	Topsoil Removal	4-34
4.6.2	Topsoil Stockpile	4-35
4.6.3	Topsoil Protection	4-35
4.6.4	Topsoil Redistribution	4-36
4.6.4.1	Coal Mine Waste Disposal Site	4-38 (a)
4.6.5	South Fork Breakout	4-39 (a)
4.7	Revegetation Plan	4-42
Revised: 02-14-08		-20-

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
4.7.1 Species and Amount per Acre, Portal and Train Loadout Areas	4-42
4.7.2 Seeding Tillage and Mulching, Portal and Train Loadout Areas	4-43
4.7.3 Revegetation & Stabilization of the Conveyor Bench	4-45
4.7.4 Irrigation, Portal and Train Loadout Areas	4-45 (b)
4.7.5 Monitoring Procedures, Portal and Train Loadout, Waste Rock Site, South Fork, and other small areas	4-46
4.7.6 Soil Testing, Portal and Train Loadout Area	4-48
4.7.7 Scofield Waste Rock Disposal Site	4-48
4.7.8 South Fork Breakout	4-50
4.8 Hazardous & Flammable Materials Disposal & Contingency Plan	4-59
4.8.1 Non-Coal Waste Materials Disposal	4-59
4.8.2 Diesel Fuel and Gasoline and Oil Storage	4-59
4.8.3 Explosive Magazines	4-60
4.8.4 Hazardous Materials	4-61
4.8.5 Slides and Other Damage	4-61
4.9 Opening and Sealing Plans	4-62
4.10 Safety and Compliance Program	4-65
4.11 Protection of Hydrological Balance - Permit and Adjacent Areas	4-67
4.11.1 Water Rights and Replacements	4-67

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
4.11.2	Monitoring Program	4-68
4.11.3	Water Quality	4-69
4.11.4	Water Quantity - Impacts	4-69
4.11.5	Mine Facilities Drainage Area	4-71
4.11.6	Loadout Site Drainage	4-71
4.11.7	Portal Locations	4-71
4.11.8	Underground Water Treatment	4-71
4.12	Postmining Landuse	4-73
4.12.1	Method of Achieving and Supporting Postmining Landuses	4-73
4.12.2	Proposed Underground Mining Activities and Consistency With Landuse Plans	4-79
4.12.3	Visual Resource Assessment to Achieve Postmining Landuse	4-79 (a)
4.12.4	Recreational Resource Assessment to Achieve the Postmining Landuse	4-80
4.12.5	Mineral Resource Assessment to Achieve the Postmining Landuse	4-80
4.12.6	Rock Disposal Site	4-80
4.13	Ponds, Impoundments, Banks, Dams and Embankments - Mine Plan Area	4-82
4.13.1	Sedimentation Ponds	4-82
4.13.2	Impoundments	4-83 (a)

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
4.13.2.1	Upper Stock Pond	4-83 (a)
4.13.2.2	Lower Ponds	4-83 (b)
4.14	Protection of Public Parks and Historic Places	4-84
4.15	Relocation or Use of Public Roads	4-85
4.16	Underground Development Waste and Excess Surface Spoil	4-87
4.16.1	Waste Rock Disposal General Description	4-88
4.17	Subsidence Control Plan	4-91
4.17.1	Subsidence Probability Survey	4-91
4.17.2	Mining Methods	4-94
4.17.3	Subsidence Effect Prevention Measures	4-94
4.17.4	Mitigation of Subsidence Effects	4-95 (b)
4.17.5	Subsidence Monitoring Program	4-97
4.17.6	Subsidence Control	4-101
4.17.7	Public Notice	4-101
4.17.8	North Lease	4-101
4.18	Fish and Wildlife Plan	4-102
4.18.1	Aquatic Resources - Eccles Creek	4-102
4.18.2	Terrestrial Wildlife Resources	4-102
4.19	Stream Diversions	4-104
4.19.1	Mine Site Stream Diversion	4-104

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
4.19.2	Mine Site Diversion Channels	4-105
4.19.3	Coal Storage Stream Diversion (RRLO)	4-105
4.19.4	Coal Storage Diversion Channel (RRLO)	4-106
4.19.5	Reclamation of Diversions and Channels Portal Area	4-107
4.19.6	Reclamation of Diversions and Channels Loadout Area	4-109
4.19.7	Diversion Channel at Rock Disposal Site	4-109
4.19.8	South Fork Breakout	4-109(a)
4.20	Transportation Facilities - Roads, Conveyors, Rail Systems	4-111
4.20.1	Transportation Roads	4-111
4.20.2	Overland Conveyor Belt	4-113(a)
4.20.3	Railroad Systems	4-114
4.20.4	Loadout Access Road	4-114
4.21	Return of Coal Processing Waste to Abandoned Underground Workings	4-117
4.22	Air Pollution Control Plan	4-118
4.22.1	Fugitive Dust Sources	4-118
4.22.2	Description of Emission Sources and Controls	4-119
4.22.3	Air Quality Control Monitoring	4-121
4.22.4	Operational Procedures and Monitoring	4-123
4.23	Alluvial Valley Floors	4-123

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: RECLAMATION PLAN (continued)</u>		<u>PAGE</u>
4.23.1	Climatological Conditions	4-123
4.23.2	Consumptive Use	4-124
4.23.3	Conclusions	4-125
4.24	Support Facilities Not Located Within the Project Area	4-128
4.25	Exploration	4-129
 <u>PART 4: EXHIBITS</u>		 <u>PAGE</u>
Exhibit 1	Waste Rock Site Post mining Land use	4-4
Exhibit 4.4.5	Acid and Toxic-Forming Material Data	4-31
Exhibit 4.12.1	Landowner Letter wanting Stock ponds	4-78
Exhibit 4.17.4.1	SR-264 UDOT Subsidence Impact agreement	4-96
Exhibit 4.22-1	Approval Order for Increased Coal Production	4-122(a)
 <u>PART 4: MAPS AND FIGURES</u>		 <u>PAGE</u>
Map 4.9-A	Portal Seal	4-63
Map 4.17.1-1	Extent of Planned and Controlled Subsidence Areas	4-92
Map 4.20.1A	Mine and RRLO Road Cross Section	4-116A
Map 4.20.1B	Mine and RRLO Road Cross Section	4-116B
 <u>PART 4: DRAWINGS SECTION</u>		 <u>NUMBER</u>
Mine Surface Facilities Reclamation Plan		4.4.2-1A

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: DRAWINGS SECTION (continued)</u>	<u>NUMBER</u>
Minesite As-Built	4.4.2-1AA
Eccles Creek Reclamation Details	4.4.2-1AC
Minesite Cross Sections	4.4.2-1B
Mine Site Reclamation Stream Gradients	4.4.2-1B1
Loadout Surface Facilities Reclamation Plan	4.4.2-1C
Reclamation Cross Sections RRLO	4.4.2-1D
Water Tank Site Reclamation Plan	4.4.2-1E
Water Tank Location	4.4.2-1F
South Fork Portals Reclamation Cross-Sections	4.6.5-1
Mining Production VS Water Discharge	4.11.4-A
Rock Disposal Site Area	4.16.1-1A
Rock Disposal Site Reclamation Plan	4.16.1-1B
Waste Rock Disposal Site Final Reclamation Plan	4.16.1-1C
Stream Gradient Profiles with Projected Subsidence Winter Quarters and Woods Canyon	4.17.1-1
Stream Gradient Profiles with Projected Subsidence Winter Quarters	4.17.1-2
Cumulative Subsidence 1990	4.17.3-1
North Lease Pre-subsidence Survey Map	4.17.3-1A
Subsidence Monitoring Points	4.17.5-1
Cross Section - South Fork of Eccles Creek	4.19.5-1
Cross Section - Middle Fork of Eccles Creek	4.19.5-2
Cross Section - North Fork of Eccles Creek	4.19.5-3
Cross Section - Main Channel Eccles Creek	4.19.5-4
Revised: 02-14-08	-26-

Table of Contents

VOLUME 3

<u>PART 4: TABLES</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
4.2-1 Reclamation Timetable	4-6
4.3-1 Bonding Calculation	4-13
4.6-1 Topsoil Stockpile Seed Mixture	4-37
4.6-4 Topsoil Redistribution	4-38(c)
4.7-1 Seed Mixture - South-facing slopes	4-51
4.7-2 North-Facing Slopes	4-52
4.7-3 Riparian Habitat Seed Mixture	4-53
4.7-4 Seed Mixture - South to West	4-54
4.7-5 Seed Mixture - North to East	4-55
4.7-6 Shrub Supplement - Riparian Zone	4-56
4.7-6A Seed Mixture - Waste Rock Disposal Site	4-57
4.7-7 Acreages and Proportion of Disturbed Areas	4-58
4.12-1 Proposed Postmining Landuse	4-75
4.17.5A Subsidence - Calculated vs. Actual	4-99b
4.17.5B Subsidence - Angle of Draw	4-99b
4.23-1 Consumptive Use of Water by Big Sagebrush	4-126
4.23-2 Consumptive Use Calculations for Riparian Grasses	4-126
<u>PART 5: CROSS REFERENCE</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
5.1 Cross Reference	5-1

Table of Contents

VOLUME 4

Climatological Summary 1984-1991

Water Quality Tabulations

Water Monitoring Site data 1981-1991

Summary of Water Quality Analysis

Graphs of Water Quality Data

Water Well Data Summary

Water Rights

VOLUME 4
2nd Binder

Water Rights (continued)

Work Plan to Evaluate Mine-Water Discharge Impacts in Eccles and Mud
Creeks

Table of Contents

VOLUME 5

BINDER 1

- 1 Slope Stability Evaluations and Access Road Embankments -
Sedimentation Ponds, Miscellaneous Fills, Facilities and Designs
- 2 Estimate of Peak Flow Discharge
- 3 Mine Site CSP Design
- 4 Portal Area Swale and Concrete V-Ditch Design
- 5 Undisturbed Areas Drainage Ditch Designs
- 6 Disturbed Area Drainage Portal Area
- 7 Stage Volume Portal Area
- 8 Topsoil Diversions
- 9 Train Loadout Undisturbed Area Drainage
- 10 Train Loadout Disturbed Drainage
- 11 Train Loadout Area Swale Design
- 12 Hydrology Study Culvert East End Train Loadout CU-16
- 13 Loadout Area Sedimentation Pond
- 14 Drainage Control Waste Rock Disposal Site

VOLUME 5
BINDER 2

- 15 Waste Rock Disposal Sediment Pond
 - 16 Waste Rock Disposal Area Capacity and Schedule
 - 17 Reclamation Costs
 - 18 Reclaimed Channel Designs
 - 19 Hydrology Study South Fork Breakout Area
 - 20 Designs For ASCA Treatments
 - 21 Demonstrations for Exempt Areas
 - 21a Demonstrations for Exempt Areas (14 sites)
 - 22 Undisturbed Drainage Ditch and Culvert to Route Runoff Around James Canyon Water Wells
 - 23 SEDCAD demonstrations for ASCA Areas
- Environmental Assessment - Coal Lease Application UTU-67939 Winter Quarters Tract

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-1

Aerial Photographs

Hydrology

Hydrologic Inventory of the Skyline Property and Adjacent areas, Carbon and Emery Counties, Utah - Vaughn Hansen Associates, October 1979

Determination of the 100-year Flood Plain of Eccles Creek and Mud Creek, Vaughn Hansen Associates, May 1980

General Hydrologic Considerations Related to Coal Development and Subsequent Impacts, Vaughn Hansen Associates, February 1981

UP&L Tract, Surface and Ground Water Baseline Water Monitoring Data, April 2001

Utah Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (UPDES) Permit, UT0023540, October 1999

Air Quality

Summary Report for Coastal States Energy Company, Radian Corporation, October 1979

Approval Order for Modification of Skyline Coal Handling Facility, Carbon County, Utah, State of Utah, January 1992

VOLUME A-1 VOLUME 2

Investigation of Surface and Groundwater Systems in the Vicinity of the Skyline Mine, Carbon, Emery, and Sanpete Counties, Utah. Probable Hydrologic Consequences of Coal Mining at the Skyline Mines and Recommendations for Surface and Groundwater Monitoring, Mayo and Associates, Mayo and Associates, September 1996

Skyline Mine Subsidence Study, Changes in Stream Channel Characteristics and Hydraulic Parameters Related to Surface Subsidence, July, 1998

EarthFax Engineering, Perennial Length and Gradient Studies of Winter Quarters Canyon and Woods Canyon Creeks, 2002 and 2003 (also located in Volume A-2, Volume 2)

Table of Contents

VOLUME A-2

SOILS AND VEGETATION

Report of Vegetation, Plant Community Analysis, Threatened and Endangered Plant Species, Soils and Reclamation Plan, A Vaughn Hansen Associates, February 1980

Skyline Project Supplemental Soils Report, Endangered Plant Studies, Inc. June 1980

Report of Vegetation and Soils, Proposes Waste Rock Disposal Site, Skyline Mine, November 1981

Response to Stipulations regarding Vegetation and Soils for the Skyline Mine, December 1981

Response to Deficiencies in the Waste Rock Disposal Area Report, August 1982

Vegetation Monitoring of Reclaimed Slopes and Corresponding Reference Areas at the Skyline Mine, August 1985

Production of Reference Areas, Soil Conservation Service, October 1987

Conveyor Bench Revegetation Plan - SCS Document, August 1988

Soil Characteristics on the Proposed Conveyor Construction Site, Sheldon D. Nelson, Ph.D., January 1991

Plant Community Types on the Proposed Conveyor Routes, Stanley B. Welsh, Ph.D., January 1991

Vegetation Sampling of Proposed Conveyor Rout and Response to Technical Deficiency Review, Endangered Plant Studies, Inc. June 1992

Report of Revegetation Success and Vegetation Monitoring of Reclaimed and Reference Areas at Skyline Mine During the 1982 Field Season

Response to Stipulations Regarding Vegetation and Soils for the Skyline Mine - December 1981

Vegetation and Soils Maps for Proposed Conveyor Route, (1991)

Table of Contents

VOLUME A-2

TERRESTRIAL WILDLIFE

Wildlife Assessment of the Skyline Mining Property and Adjacent Areas,
Clyde L. Pritchett, April 1980

The Skyline Mine - AviFauna, Dr. Clayton White, Dept. of Zoology,
Brigham Young University,

Mammals - Endangered and Threatened Species, Dr. C. Pritchett and Dr.
H.D. Smith, Dept. of Zoology, Brigham Young University.

Attachement H - Vertebrate Species of Southeastern Utah, Publ. No. 78-
16

Baseline Data Report on Presence and Utilization of Eccles Canyon by
Elk, Mule Deer and Moose, H. D. Smith, C.L. Pritchette, M. Oveson, E.
Robey, (12/1981)

AVIFAUNA REPORTS

Skyline Mine Project - Interim Findings, 8 June 1980, Clayton M. White,
Dept. of Zoology, Brigham Young University

The Avifauna and Raptors of the Skyline Mine Project - Final Report
July, 1980

Additional Avifauna Information located in Confidential Binder

Additional Wildlife Information located in Confidential Binder

Table of Contents

VOLUME A-2, Volume 2

SOILS AND VEGETATION

GOB Pile Expansion Soils Report (November 1998)

James Canyon Vegetation Study, Mt. Nebo Scientific (September 2001)

James Canyon Soils Report, EIS Environmental and Engineering
Consultants (September 2001)

Table of Contents

VOLUME A-2, Volume 2

SOILS AND VEGETATION (continued)

Exhibit 2.75 - Data Adequacy Information for the Skyline Mine:
Vegetation of the Winter Quarters tract, Mt Nebo Scientific (May 14,
1992)

Sample Analysis Results of Waste Rock and Electric Lake Sediment Used
to Reclaim South Fork Portals, Mine 1 (2003)

Exhibit 2.14b - NRCS Prime Farmland Determination (August 1996)

Riparian Plant Community Survey Near Scofield, Utah. Winter Quarters
Canyon and Woods Canyon 2002, Mt Nebo Scientific (2002)

EarthFax Engineering - Winter Quarters Canyon and Woods Canyon GPS
Survey, Perennial Length and Gradient Studies of Winter Quarters Canyon
and Woods Canyon, 2002 (letter dated June 2004, also located in Volume
A-1, Volume 2)

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek and Woods Canyon
Creek - A Study Plan, May 9, 2005

TERRESTRIAL WILDLIFE

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek & Woods Canyon Creek
- A Study Plan, May 9, 2005, (Amphibians pg. 4, Macroinvertebrates, Pg.
6, Spotted frog, pg. 12)

AVIFAUNA REPORTS

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Creek and Woods Canyon Creek - A
Study Plan, May 9, 2005, Mt. Nebo Scientific (Northern Goshawk, pg. 9,
Northern Three-toed Woodpecker, pg. 11)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-3

ARCHEOLOGICAL REPORTS

- Notice, Moved to Confidential File, August 2005

HISTORICAL REPORTS

- Notice, Moved to Confidential File, August 2005

AQUATIC WILDLIFE

Impact to Eccles Creek cutthroat trout, Division of Wildlife, June 1990

Aquatic Ecology of Surface Waters Associated with the Skyline Project -
General Aquatic Resource Description - Fish Habitat Plan, January 1980

Aquatic Ecology of Surface Waters Associated with the Skyline Project -
Fish (and Wildlife) Habitat Plan, January 1980

Monitoring of Aquatic Macroinvertebrates and Sediments in the Eccles
Creek Drainage - December 1985

Monitoring Aquatic Macroinvertebrates, Sediments and Habitat Recovery
of Eccles Creek - 1984 Summary

Recovery of the Cutthroat Trout (Salmo clarki) Fishery in Eccles Creek,
Utah, From Coal Mining Impacts

Stream Diversion Documentation, August 1980

GEOTECHNICAL

Dames and Moore Report - Geotechnical Investigation, Skyline Coal Mine
Project, Approximately seven miles south southwest of Scofield, Utah,
October 1979

GEOLOGY

Roy Full Report, September 1979

Roy Full Report, February 1980

Geologic Cross Sections

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-3, Volume 2

Baseline Monitoring of the Benthos in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek & Woods Canyon Creek - October 2002 & June 2003

Baseline Monitoring of the Benthos in Winter Quarters Creek & Woods Canyon Creek - October 2003 & June 2004

An Electrofishing Survey of Woods & Winter Quarters Canyons, October 2002

Biological Studies in Winter Quarters Canyon Creek & Woods Canyon Creek, May 9, 2005

TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME A-4

Drill Hole Geology - See Confidential File